
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Local Development Framework Working Group 
 
To: Councillors Steve Galloway (Chair), Potter (Vice-Chair), 

Ayre, D'Agorne, Merrett, Moore, Reid, Simpson-Laing, 
R Watson and Watt 
 

Date: Monday, 4 August 2008 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Local 
Development Framework Working Group held on Tuesday 15 July 
2008. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak, regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the remit of the Working Group, may do so.  The 
deadline for registering is 5.00 pm on Friday 1 August 2008. 
 

4. Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 

This report seeks approval to publish the full ‘Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation Study’. The written study and large scale maps are 
available in the Members Library and an electronic version of the 
written study is available online.  



 

 
 

5. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officers: 
  
Name: Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share) 
Contact Details:  

• Telephone – (01904) 552030  

• Email: 
 catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk and louise.cook@york.gov.uk  

(If contacting us by e-mail, please send to both democracy 
officers named above) 

 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 

If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK WORKING 
GROUP 

DATE 15 JULY 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS POTTER (CHAIR), AYRE, 
D'AGORNE, MERRETT, MOORE, REID, SIMPSON-
LAING, R WATSON, WATT AND MORLEY 
(SUBSTITUTE) 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS STEVE GALLOWAY 

6. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point of the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda. 

Cllr Simpson-Laing declared a personal interest in the business generally 
as she resides adjacent to the site for development. 

7. MINUTES  

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting of the LDF Working Group 
held on 3 June 2008 be approved and signed by the Chair subject to the 
following amendments: 

Item 5 Resolved item (iii) It was agreed that the Sustainability Statement 
would be circulated to all members before delegating authority. 

The following two sentences be added to item 4 paragraph 3: 

Members enquired about internet shopping and it was noted that an 
allowance had been made for this in the projections. 

Members asked about the basis on which the projections were made and it 
was confirmed that they have been based on long term economic trends of 
the past 20 years but take no account of the recent dramatic rise in oil 
prices, 'credit crunch' or developing world recession.  

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

9. YORK NORTHWEST AREA ACTION PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT 

TOWARDS A PREFERRED OPTION  

Agenda Item 2Page 3



Members considered a report that outlined the progress of work on the 
York Northwest Area Action Plan and other planning and transport work 
being carried out. It outlined a revised vision, objectives and emerging 
spatial relationship, which has been developed from the work at the Issues 
and Options stage. A draft document plan for the Preferred Option Report 
was also outlined to indicate the structure of the report to be prepared.  

A plan of sites, which had been suggested for residential development, 
was tabled and members discussed the areas: 

• Former civil service sports ground 

• West View Close (adjacent to the civil services sports ground) 

• Cemex Site 

• Keyland site, Carlisle Street 

• Thrall Site 

Members received a PowerPoint presentation which focused on the vision 
and objections and the emerging spatial relationships.  A revised vision 
was suggested which would take part in an overall package of aspirations 
for the York North West (YNW) area which included strategic objectives 
and spatial objectives which are set out below: 

York Northwest in 2026 will be 
                …a distinctive place of outstanding quality…
                    … well connected with the city and wider region…

 ...contributing to the economic prosperity of the city…. 
                         ...a vital and innovative addition to York..  

        ..fostering new sustainable communities and enhancing 
quality of life” 

Strategic Objectives
1. To create new sustainable and inclusive communities. 
2. To ensure the new communities and development are fully 

integrated with existing communities. 
3. To maximise a unique opportunity to contribute to the overall 

economy   prosperity of the city.   

Spatial Objectives

1. To create new vibrant mixed neighbourhoods which assist in 
meeting the housing needs of York. 

2. To create a mixed use urban quarter providing a complimentary 
range of uses to the City Centre, including a central business 
district, retail, leisure and residential uses, focussed around high 
quality public realm. 

3. To create culture and leisure facilities which complement and 
expand York’s regional, national, and international cultural offer. 

4. To create connections with the City which prioritise sustainable 
modes of transport, including a new public transport interchange.  

Page 4



5.  To create a new employment area which provides for future 
employment needs whilst maximising proximity to strategic transport 
infrastructure. 

Members were asked to consider the above vision, strategic and spatial 
objectives for the Area Action Plan which, if agreed, would be taken 
forward and outlined in the Preferred Options for the Core Strategy. 

Members raised various issues relating to: 

• The implications of the different options and if the analysis would be 
available to the general public and councillors. The officer stated 
that the analysis was currently being revised internally. 

• The transport links including cycle routes, consultation with bus 
operators and a Park and Rail option at York Business Park.  The 
officer stated that they were currently reviewing the cycle routes and 
considering the Park and Rail option but had not yet made any links 
with the bus operators. 

• The location of the shopping centres, residential area’s and the 
density of the scheme.  

• The number of car journeys in the area which could exacerbate 
congestion, air pollution and noise level.  Officers suggested 
incorporating non-car zone areas into the development site.  

Members considered the following suggested options to be carried 
forward: 

� E1: B1 (offices) use at York Central 

� E6: B8 (storage and distribution) use at British Sugar 

� H2: Higher density housing included within a mix of uses, 

close to public transport interchanges, with medium density 

housing further from these facilities. 

� H3: Housing mix in accordance with HMA 

� S3: 2 Local Centres 

� S5: Comparison retailing at York Central 

� C1: Cultural quarter at NRM linked to museum 

gardens/Minster 

� C3: 4/5* hotel at York Central 

� C5: Pedestrian/cycle bridge across the river 

Some members expressed concerns that B2: General Industrial was not 
listed and the officer informed members that they were still waiting for an 
employment study which could effect the options. Some members 
questioned why S5: Comparison retailing at York Central was listed as 
previously it was agreed that this was not appropriate from the advice 
given on the Retail Study.  Officers stated that the Study showed that the 

Page 5



Castle/Piccadilly site was the preferred retail site but that York Central was 
the second best location. Members were also informed that officers had 
received extra evidence to support that S5 should be included in this 
review. Some Members still showed continuing concerns on including S5 
but agreed to review the extra evidence before making a final decision. 

After a detailed discussion members agreed the following 
recommendations to the report: 

� Section 19, Bulletin point one of the Vision statement, amend it to 
read a distinctive place of outstanding quality and sustainable 
design 

� Option H1 and H2 (page 36 & 37) Key Constraints and 
Uncertainties bullet point 3, Include the following sentence to the 
report: Opportunity to incorporate non car zones into the 
development site.  

Some Members also suggested including an introductory paragraph under 
each option listed in Appendix 2. 

Members were informed that once a preferred option was agreed the next 
steps would include viability testing, transport work and sustainability 
appraisal.   

Members noted the progress on the Area Action Plan and requested 
officer’s produce a background report on why certain options were not 
chosen.  

RESOLVED: (i)  That the progress on the Area Action Plan to date be 
noted 

Reason:         To ensure that the Area Action Plan can be progressed, in 
accordance with the local Development Scheme. 

 (ii) That the recommended changes on the vision, 
objectives, spatial relationship/thematic approach and 
options be noted by officers. 

Reason: To ensure that Members views are included in the 
production of the Preferred Option. 

Cllr Potter, Chair 
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 5.50 pm]. 

Page 6



 

  

 

   

 

Local Development Framework Working 
Group   

4th August 2008 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 

 

Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study  

Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek Member’s approval to publish the full ‘Open 
Space, Sport and Recreation Study’. The written study and large scale maps are 
available in the Members Library and an electronic version of the written study is 
available online. Further copies of the document are available from the author of this 
report and all documents will be available at the meeting . This study will form the 
open space, sport and recreation part of the evidence base for the Local 
Development Framework.  

Background 

2. National planning guidance on open space; Planning Policy Guidance note 17 
(PPG17) states that local authorities should undertake robust assessments of the 
existing and future needs of their communities for open space, sport and 
recreational facilities. In November 2006, consultants PMP were appointed to 
undertake such an assessment.   

 
3. The study has been undertaken in accordance with PPG17 and its companion 

guide. It assesses open spaces of public value which offer important opportunities 
for sport and recreation. The Study includes the background to the process, 
methodology for undertaking the Study, Strategic Context, and then addresses the 
quantity, quality and accessibility for each type of open space as part of the PPG17 
Assessment.  Finally, the Study considers the Strategy, Key Priorities and 
implementation of the outcomes of the Study. 
 

4. It should be noted, there are many areas of open space across the City that are of 
high significance and importance in terms of biodiversity and conservation habitats. 
These sites, although not covered by this study, will be considered as part of the 
Council’s wider approach to nature conservation through a Green Infrastructure 
Strategy. This approach was approved by Members at the LDF Working Group on 
4th March 2008. A Green Infrastructure Strategy is currently being prepared and the 
intention is that it will be adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
that will be linked to a Core Strategy policy. In the long term, it is anticipated that the 
Green Infrastructure Strategy will act a tool for managing and subsequently 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



improving existing green assets as well as providing policy guidance on where new 
green assets should be created.  
 

5. Members will be aware that Phase 1 of the Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
Study was approved by the LDF Working Group on 27th June 2007. Phase 1 of the 
Study covered:  
 

• an analysis of existing provision; 

• local standards based on consultation and best practice; and 

• strategic recommendations for the City of York Council area as a whole. 
 
6. Phase 2 was carried out during autumn 2007 and built on the work undertaken 

during the first phase to identify levels of open space deficiency and surplus for each 
of the prescribed open space categories set out in PPG17. It has allowed for the 
refining of information in Phase 1. 
 

7. Members will recall at the LDF Working Group on 8th January 2008, a report 
recommending approval of the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study (Phase 1 
and 2) as part of the evidence base for the Local Development Framework. At the 
meeting, members decided to defer a decision on the Study, the key reasons for this 
include: 

 

• the analysis area boundaries gave a false impression of provision - analysis 
of sites should be carried out by ward to make it clearer; 

• sites had been omitted from the audit - members should be consulted on their 
specific wards; 

• the recommended standards should be assessed alongside the local plan 
standards. 

 
8. Following the 8th January meeting, all ward Members were sent copies of the 

relevant maps for their wards with existing open space marked on, together with a 
schedule of open space. Ward Members were asked if they agreed with the sites 
identified, and if any other sites (which meet the PPG17 criteria) could be identified 
in their particular ward. In such case, Members were specifically asked to outline the 
site on the map and fill in a proforma outlining the details of the site. 
 

9. In total a further 93 potential sites were put forward by Members. These responses 
were fed into the assessment process and were tested against the PPG17 criteria. 
Those sites that were too small, didn’t have a recreational function or did not have 
public access, were excluded and 68 sites qualified and have been included in the 
final report.  

 
 Accessible Countryside 
 
10. The working group raised concerns that large areas of accessible countryside had 

been omitted from the work e.g. Clifton Ings, Rawcliffe Ings etc. The Study defines 
Accessible Countryside as “ large areas of green space where the primary function 
is not recreation – many areas of countryside are used for agricultural purposes 
such as grazing or growing of crops. The recreational use of the site is incidental to 
its overall primary purpose.” Officers and the consultants considered this issue but it 

Page 8



was felt that due to their size, and the fact that recreation is not their main function, 
they should not be included under any of the PPG17 typologies linked to a standard. 
Their inclusion would skew the provision standards as they would create the illusion 
of a higher provision of open space in the city resulting in lower requirements for 
development standards for the future. 

 
11. Nevertheless in recognition of their role, it was decided that the revised study should 

include an additional designation, ‘Accessible Countryside’ (Section 12) that 
acknowledges that large areas of countryside around the City and its urban fringes 
provide important recreational opportunities for local residents, without affecting the 
overall open space provision standards for the city. 
 
Green Corridors 

 
12. Green corridors encompass towpaths along canals and riverbanks, cycleways, 

rights of way and disused railway lines. They have a primary purpose of providing 
opportunities for walking, cycling and horse riding whether for leisure purposes or 
travel, and opportunities for wildlife migration. The working group raised concerns in 
relation to green corridors in terms of them not being mapped or having specific 
provision standards. Similarly to ‘Accessible Countryside’, the study recognises the 
importance of green corridors for recreational uses and providing linkages between 
open spaces and the wider countryside however, due to their linear nature it is not 
appropriate to measure their area for the purpose of setting targets. 
 

13. The study does however identify that future development needs to encompass 
linkages between large areas of open space, create opportunities to develop the 
green corridor network and utilise potential development sites and also recommends 
that the Council should produce a Green Infrastructure Strategy. 

 
Provision Standards 

 
Setting Local Quantity Standards 

 
14. At the 8th January meeting, Members raised concerns that the study did not show 

the methodology of how the local standards had been derived and requested that 
the standards were reconsidered. 
 

15. This revised study sets out the specific percentage increases which have been 
derived directly from levels of satisfaction in the household survey. This is based on 
PPG17 requirements which advocate that planning policies for open spaces, sport 
and recreation facilities should be based upon local standards derived from a robust 
assessment of local need. Table 1 below shows the percentages that are 
recommended on the basis that they are realistic and achievable but are reflective of 
local need. Furthermore, the recommended increases are drawn from similar 
studies undertaken in authorities across the country and are therefore based on 
good practice. 
 

  
 
 

Page 9



Table 1: Percentage increase in Provision Standards 
Questionnaire response: 

“about right” 
Increase current level of 

provision by: 
50%+ Set at current level 

40-50% 2% 
30-40% 5% 

20-30% 10% 
10-20% 15% 

 
16. For example, 39% of respondents stated that the amount of ‘Amenity Green Space’ 

in York was “about right”, a 5% increase of the current provision is required.  
 

Comparison of Local Plan and Proposed Standards 
 
17. Table 2 below sets out the recommended standard (based on local need as set out 

above) and the Local Plan standard (based on the National Six Acre Standard). It is 
difficult to directly compare the Local Plan standards and the recommended new 
standards as they refer to different typologies, however, by looking at the total 
required provision, it is apparent that the proposed new standards require a much 
higher level of open space provision compared to the Local Plan standards. 

 
Table 2: Comparison of the Local Plan and recommended provision standards 

Typology Recommended 
standard (ha per 1000 
population)  

Local Plan 
Standard (ha per 
1000 population) 

Parks and 
Gardens 

0.18  

Natural and Semi 
Natural Provision 

2.11  

Amenity Green 
Space 

1.14 0.9 

Provision for 
Children 

0.48 facilities per 
1000 
(0.08ha per 1000) 

0.7 

Provision for 
Teenagers 

0.2 facilities per 1000 
(0.01 ha per 1000) 

 

Outdoor sports 
Facilities 

2.05 1.7 

Allotments 0.29  
Cemeteries, 
Churchyards and 
Green Corridors 

N/A  

Accessible 
Countryside 

N/A  

Total provision 5.86 3.3 
 

18. The only typology that appears to be a reduced standard compared to the Local 
Plan standard is for Children’s Play Space. The Local Plan standard is broadly 
based upon a 2001 National Playing Fields Association (NPFA) standard, “The Six 

Page 10



Acre Standard”. The NPFA children’s play space standard includes general playing 
space as well areas for equipped facilities resulting in a larger area whereas the 
recommended new standard is based on tighter boundaries just covering the 
equipped facilities. In addition, the new standard is based on the number of facilities 
(equipped play areas) per 1000 population rather than the hectarage. The Study has 
based the size on that of a standard LEAP (Local Equipped Area for Play) which is 
400m2 . 

 
Accessibility and Quality Standards 
 

19. Within PPG17 as well as quantity standards there are also accessibility and quality 
standards. The Local Plan just focuses on the quantity of open space in relation to 
developer provision.  
 

20. Accessibility is a key assessment of open space sites. Without accessibility for the 
public the provision of good quality or good quantity of open spaces would be of 
very limited value. The accessibility standards recommended in the Study have 
been derived from an understanding of the community views, particularly with 
regards to the maximum distance that people are willing to travel as well as the 
analysis of national and existing local standards. A summary of the accessibility 
standards are highlighted in Table 3. 

 
21. The accessibility standards are set in the form of a distance in metres where walking 

is considered to be the most appropriate mode of travel, and a drive time where 
driving to the open space site would be more appropriate. For each site, a threshold 
(maximum distance people are expected to travel) has been mapped in the form of 
a buffer which provides a good indication of where areas of the city are deficient in 
terms of accessing open spaces.  

 
22. In addition, all sites were assessed for their quality. They were given a score for a 

range of factors (see examples below) which were then weighted to reflect the 
perceived importance of the factors.  

  

• cleanliness and maintenance 

• security and safety 

• vegetation 

• ancillary recommendation 
 

23. The commentary set out in Table 3 outlines the main findings related to the quality 
of open space in York. In general the quality of open spaces across the City is good. 
However, there are concentrations of poor and average quality sites dispersed 
across the City. Rowntree Park and Museum Gardens were both highlighted as 
being of a high quality. 
 
Key Findings 
 

24. The analysis contained in the Study provides an overview of provision of each type 
of open space in terms of quantity, quality and accessibility. Table 3 set out a brief 
summary of the findings.  

 

Page 11



Table 3: Summary of Findings 
 

 Current 
Provision 

Current 
Provision 
per 1000 
population 

Recommended 
Standard per 
1000 

Accessibility 
Standard 

Comments 

Parks & gardens 35.40ha 0.18ha 0.18ha City Park: 20 
minute walk 
(960 metres) 
Local Park: 
15 minute 
walk (720 
metres) 

On the whole there is a good level 
of access to the City’s parks and 
gardens. There is an adequate 
quantity in terms of the standards, 
although this is mainly focused in 
the urban area. The quality is 
generally good especially as 
several Green Flag awards have 
been awarded. 

Natural & Semi-
natural 

408.96ha 
(74 sites) 

2.11ha 2.11ha 15 minutes 
walk (720 
metres) 

Access to natural and semi-natural 
open space is high across York – 
urban and rural areas. There is a 
high quantity of sites although 
there is an uneven distribution. 
Several sites scored extremely 
highly (e.g. Askham Bog) in terms 
of their quality and can be 
considered to be examples of good 
practice. 

Amenity green 
space 

216.20ha 1.11ha 1.14ha 5 minute 
walk (240 
metres) 

The distribution of amenity green 
space is uneven across the city, 
although many residents devoid of 
AGS have access to a park. There 
is a great variation in the quality of 
AGS  across the city, this was also 
reflected through consultation. 

P
a

g
e
 1

2



Provision for 
Children 

10.07ha 
(84 sites) 

0.44 
facilities  

0.48 facilities 10 minute 
walk (480 
metres) 

The distribution of facilities across 
the City is uneven and the size  of 
sites varies significantly. The 
quality of these facilities was 
identified as being average or poor 
by the majority of respondents. 

Provision for 
teenagers 

4 facilities 0.02 
facilities 

0.2 facilities 15 minutes 
walk (720 
metres) 

Although there are very few 
teenage facilities across the city, 
there general quality of these is 
perceived as being relatively good. 

Outdoor sports 
facilities 

378.7ha 
(158 sites) 

1.96 ha 2.05 ha Local 
outdoor 
sports: 15 
minute walk 
(720 metres) 
Synthetic turf 
pitches: 20 
minute drive 
(8km)  

All residents are within the 
suggested 20 minute drivetime of a 
strategic site (synthetic turf 
pitches).There is a wide range in 
the quality of outdoor sports 
facilities across the city.  

Allotments 42 sites 0.28 ha 0.29 ha 15 minute 
walk (720 
metres) 

Allotment provision across the city 
is unevenly spread and when 
compared against the local 
standard, there appears to be a 
general shortfall. The quality 
varies, although Pit Lane 
allotments (Derwent Ward) score 
the highest and are considered to 
be an example of good practice.  

 

P
a
g
e
 1

3



Conclusion 

25. The Study recommends that the local standards for quantity, accessibility and  
quality within the study and set out in Table 3 above are embedded into LDF policy. 
These standards should be used when considering the future growth and 
development of the City. They will also form the basis for criteria-based policies that 
will set the levels of open space provision for new developments.  
 

26. It is recommended that an SPD, linked to a Core Strategy policy, is prepared which 
details the approach towards open space developer contributions, ensuring that the 
system is fair, transparent and consistent.  

 
27. As part of the work, PMP have not simply provided the Council with a snapshot of 

open space provision and needs in 2008, they have also provided a dynamic tool 
which the Council can use to assess the future needs and provision  of open space 
in the City. This includes an ‘Access 2000’ audit database of open spaces, linked to 
GIS, including site locations and site areas, as well as additional fields of attribute 
data for quality, site access and wider benefits. As new developments come forward 
in the future, the Council will be able to update the fields of information within the 
database, giving an up to date picture of provision and need. This will allow site 
specific assessments to be undertaken.  

 
28. In addition to providing a planning tool, the study will also help to inform future 

management  of the sites and guide any potential investment opportunities.  

 

Consultation  

29. Public consultation was a key aspect of  the Study. A series of public consultation 
exercises were undertaken, these are summarised below: 
 

• questionnaires sent to a sample of 5,000 residents across the City; 

• questionnaires to Parish Councils; 

• school pupil IT based questionnaire survey; 

• consultation with Council officers; 

• consultation with interest groups / external agencies, sports clubs /    
outdoor leisure providers, adjacent local authorities; 

• workshops with local interest groups; 

• advertising via local media; 

• drop in sessions / exhibitions at Parliament Street, and Tescos 
Askham Bar & Clifton Moor; 

• officer attendance and  / or displays at Ward Committee meetings; 

• response text messaging service; and 

• e-mail response service. 
 

30. The above consultation methods have helped ensure that residents and interest 
groups / organisations across the City have been involved in the consultation 
process. This has enabled PMP to clearly identify the local need for open space. 
 

Page 14



 

Options  

31. Members have three options relating to the Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
Study: 
 
Option 1: To approve the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study for publication 
as part of the Local Development Framework evidence base; or 
 
Option 2: To seek amendments to the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study 
through recommendations of the LDF Working Group; or 

 
Option 3 :  To request further work from officers.  

 
Analysis 

 
32. The Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study forms an important part of the 

evidence base for the LDF. The approach to the study is based on national 
guidance and best practice and the recommendations are taken from extensive 
consultation with local communities. The additional sites submitted by Members 
have been fully considered against the PPG17 criteria and therefore the audit 
identifies all the open spaces in York as per national guidance. The study will be the 
primary evidence base used to guide planning policy issues regarding open space 
provision in the City.   
 

33. The LDF Core Strategy which sets out the Strategic Vision for the City is 
approaching its preferred options stage and it is critical that the open space 
evidence base is available to influence future decisions on the strategic policies for 
York.  

 
34. Work is also currently being done on assessing the sites submitted as part of the 

Allocations DPD Issues and Options. An approved Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Study is important for this process ahead of the preferred options being 
taken forward at the end of the year.  
 

35. The working group is therefore asked to approve the Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Study, as part of the evidence base for the Local Development 
Framework. 

 

Corporate Priorities 

36. The option outlined above accords with the following Corporate Strategy Priorities: 

• Increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes of 
transport; 

• Improve the actual and perceived condition and appearance of the city’s 
streets, housing estates and publicly accessible spaces; 

Page 15



• Improve the health and lifestyles of people who live in York, in particular 
among groups whose levels of health are the poorest. 

Implications 

37. The following implications have been assessed. 

• Financial – None. 

• Human Resources (HR) – None. 

• Equalities - None      

• Legal - None 

• Crime and Disorder - None       

• Information Technology (IT) - None 

• Property - None 

• Other 

 

Risk Management 
 

38. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, there are no identified 
risks associated with the recommendations of this report. 

 

Recommendations 

39. It is recommended that Members: 

(i) approve, subject to the recommendations of this Working Group, the 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study, for publication as part of the 
Local Development Framework evidence base.  

Reason: So that the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study can be 
used as part of the Local Development Framework evidence base and 
to avoid further delays to the Core Strategy production .  

(ii) delegate to the Director of City Strategy, in consultation with the 
Executive Member and Shadow Executive Member for City Strategy, 
the making of any incidental changes arising from the recommendation 
of the LDF Working Group, prior to its publication as part of the Local 
Development Framework evidence base. 

Reason: So that any recommended changes can be incorporated into 
the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study. 

 

Page 16



 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Chief Officer’s name  

Damon Copperthwaite 
Assistant Director of City Development and 
Transport 
(01904) 551448 
Report Approved � Date 24

th
 July 2008 

 
 

tick 

Author’s name  

Rebecca Harrison/John Roberts 
Development Officer 
City Development  
(01904) 551482 
 

Report Approved 

 

Date Insert Date 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  List information for all 
Implication ie Financial                               Implication ie Legal 
Name                                                          Name 
Title                                                            Title 
Tel No.                                                       Tel No. 
 

All √ Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers: 
 

Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study  
 
Annexes 
 
None 

   

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study

